

# **Safeguarding Policy**

Last reviewed: November 2023

Next review: July 2024

Owned by: Sally Moussawi & Daniella Valz Gen

#### **About**

This policy is adapted from Co-operatives UK Adult Safeguarding Policy

- All not/nowhere policies are ongoing processes that are updated and reviewed regularly.
- The editing process of these policies was a collecting endeavour in which all coop members were able to give feedback, seek clarification and make suggestions. Our board of trustees was also involved in the feedback process.
- We worked with external policy consultants to support this work. In Jan 2024 we will be receiving training from People's Support Coop to deepen our policy implementation practices.
- All members of not/nowhere are allocated paid time to read these policies and ask questions about them as part of their onboarding process to the coop.
- All not/nowhere workers are trained on how to assess risk as part of workshop
  facilitation training. Workshop facilitators are required to conduct a risk assessment
  before every workshop which other co-op members will feedback on during
  not/nowhere's regular worker meetings.

Contents	
0.0 About not/nowhere	3
1.0 Introduction	3
2.0 Our policy	4
2.1 Our commitments	4
2.2 Responsibilities	5
2.3 Lead Safeguarding Officer	5
2.4 Safeguarding children	6
2.5 Regulated Activity	6
2.6 The principles of Safeguarding	7
3.0 Keeping yourself and others safe	7
4.0 The procedure to follow	8
4.1 What to do if a concern is raised to you	8
4.2 How to record a disclosure	9
4.3 How we will act if we are made aware of Safeguarding Issue	9
4.4 Review and Improvement	9
5.0 Online Safety	10
Appendix 1. Glossary of terms	11
Appendix 2. Signs and indicators and abuse and neglect	13
Appendix 3. Incidents reporting form	15



#### About not/nowhere

not/nowhere is an artist workers' cooperative that programmes workshops, screenings, exhibitions and other events. Our mission is to ensure that local artists who use analogue film in their work can access film and media equipment, and acquire the training to use these machines creatively. We are committed to Black and POC artists exploring new possibilities for owning the means of production of our work and finding sustainability in our practice.

not/nowhere's additional focus is to provide infrastructural support for artists working in all mediums, and enfranchise people living or working in London to take pleasure in expressing themselves creatively.

not/nowhere is based in East London.

#### 1.0 Introduction

not/nowhere is committed to creating and maintaining a safe and positive environment and accept our responsibility to safeguard the welfare of everyone with whom we may have a business relationship from time to time, attends our programmes and receives our services.

not/nowhere takes a broad view of safeguarding and believes that anyone, at any time, could be considered 'vulnerable'. This policy therefore explains our position on safeguarding young adults at risk and vulnerable adults, but also seeks to safeguard colleagues at work and others we may come into contact with from time to time during the course of that work.

Please read this policy carefully and get in touch with not/nowhere directors if you have any questions. As of November 2023 our Directors are: Taylor Le Melle (<a href="mailto:taylor@not-nowhere.org">taylor@not-nowhere.org</a>) and Sally Moussawi (accounts@not-nowhere.org)

This policy abides to the <u>Care Act of 2014</u> and should be read in conjunction with the not/nowhere's Care and Accountability Policy. If you have concerns relating to safeguarding or the welfare of a vulnerable adult or young adult at risk we prefer that you raise those concerns immediately using the procedure set out in this policy.

not/nowhere operates from the understanding that it is impossible to ensure that no vulnerable adult or child ever comes to any harm while in contact with us. We are operating within a harm reduction framework that upholds abolitionist values as much as that is possible within the structures that we exist in. We recognise that not/nowhere policies are a work in progress and that this work never ends. We are committed to ongoing reviews at



every AGM. Our next AGM will be in July 2024.

This policy is applicable to all not/nowhere workers and any members, contractors or third parties running programmes or activities with us or on our behalf. Any failure to follow this policy will be investigated and taken with outmost seriousness and will result in proportionate consequences. If you are a member, contractor or third party and fail to follow the guidelines set out in this policy, we reserve the right to terminate our relationship with immediate effect.

### 2.0 Our policy

not/nowhere has a zero tolerance approach to abuse, discrimination and restraint. This includes, but is not limited to, physical abuse, sexual abuse, psychological abuse, financial or material abuse, neglect and acts of omission, and discriminatory abuse.

We believe that everyone, regardless of age, ability or disability, gender, race, religion, ethnic origin, sexual orientation, marital, gender or legal status have the right to be protected from abuse and poor safeguarding practice. We will always respect the rights, dignity and worth of those we come into contact with, including vulnerable adults and young adults at risk. Additionally, we recognise that ability and disability can change over time, so that some people may become additionally vulnerable to abuse, for example where they have increased dependency on others or increasing communication difficulties.

#### 2.1 Our commitments

- 1. not/nowhere is committed to ensuring that we provide a safer environment for:
  - o anyone accessing our services or attending our premises;
  - o anyone participating in programmes or activities run by us or on our behalf —which include the regular running of workshops on analogue equipment training, financial skills, writing workshops and creative development, as well as public programme events such us film screenings and panel discussions— and
  - o not/nowhere workers while they are at work or working for us.
  - 2. Identify individuals who are at risk of significant harm by encouraging audiences, workshop attendants and workers to share their access needs with us prior to engaging in our activities.



- 3. Have a clear and robust procedure for reporting concerns relating to abuse, potential abuse or mistreatment of individuals
- 4. Have an appropriate system for responding to disclosures of abuse, potential abuse or mistreatment
- 5. Take any concerns or allegations seriously, investigate them appropriately and take the necessary steps to remove the individual from harm's way
- 6. Report incidents to the appropriate authorities

### 2.2 Responsibilities

not/nowhere is responsible for safeguarding. You must read and understand this policy and ask other members if you have any questions.

In particular, anyone who is engaged in any form of activity with vulnerable adults or young adults at risk, including anyone handling data in relation to those individuals, must read and abide by this policy.

The Directors have responsibility for safeguarding issues within not/nowhere and any programmes or activities run by third party providers on the behalf of not/nowhere.

not/nowhere will take appropriate measures to check the suitability of individuals who will be working with vulnerable adults or young adults at risk and will provide appropriate support and training relating to safeguarding and spotting the signs of abuse. Where appropriate, such as in the event of working with children, this will include obtaining Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks. A 'satisfactory' DBS check will have no unspent criminal convictions (including cautions, reprimands and final warnings) relevant to the post. If you receive a criminal conviction after we have conducted your DBS check, you must report this to directors immediately.

### 2.3 The Lead Safeguarding Officer

The role of the Lead Safeguarding Officer is to:

- Investigate any safeguarding concerns and take appropriate action
- Involve outside agencies, for example social services or the police, where appropriate



- Participate in relevant training and ensure that other employees receive the appropriate safeguarding training
- Challenge poor practice in the organisation
- Be aware of changes in relevant legislation, guidance and best practice
- The not/nowhere Lead Safeguarding Officers:

Safeguarding leads (key contacts)

not/nowhere designated Safeguarding lead - Sally Moussawi, co-director, 07789731612

accounts@not-nowhere.org (nb working days are Monday and Wednesday)

not/nowhere deputy designated Safeguarding lead - Daniella Valz-Gen, cooperative member, 07931435397 programmes@not-nowhere.org (nb working days are Monday and Wednesday)

# 2.4 Safeguarding children

not/nowhere abides by the guidelines of the Children Act 1989.

not/nowhere does not usually employ individuals under the age of 18, however, from time to time we may invite young people or children to attend various events, panels and conferences. In these circumstances the worker that is running the event will ensure that:

- The Lead Safeguarding Officer is informed of the event, and the circumstances and capacity within which the young person is attending;
- Any attendee under the age of 18 is accompanied by a designated adult;
- Where the designated adult is an employee or associate of not/nowhere, they have a Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate; and
- A risk assessment has been conducted and any identified actions have been completed.
- not/nowhere commits to safeguarding children and complying at all times with all relevant legislation.

#### 2.5 Regulated activity

Regulated activity is defined in law (please see Appendix 1 for the legal definition). not/nowhere does not believe itself to be engaging in regulated activity and it therefore has no legal basis on which to obtain enhanced DBS checks. There is also no obligation on not/nowhere to maintain a safeguarding contact in the local authority or to report safeguarding issues to a regulator. Nevertheless, not/nowhere takes its responsibilities



towards its members, service users and workers seriously and will take whatever steps required to safeguard them during their interactions with the organisation.

This policy will be reviewed each time the organisation commences a new programme of activity in relation to young people or adults who may be considered to be vulnerable, to ensure that it remains fit for purpose. If, in future, not/nowhere does find itself entering into regulated activity in relation to vulnerable adults or children, the policy and procedure will be reviewed accordingly.

#### 2.6 The principles of safeguarding

All interactions with vulnerable adults or young adults at risk through not/nowhere should be based on the following principles of safeguarding:

**Empowerment** – People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions.

**Prevention** – It is better to take action before harm occurs.

**Proportionality** – The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented.

**Protection** – Support and representation for those in greatest need.

**Partnership** – Local solutions through services working with their communities.

**Accountability** – Accountability and transparency in delivering safeguarding.

### 3.0 Keeping yourself and others safe

All not/nowhere workers and third parties delivering services on our behalf must act appropriately at all times to keep themselves and others safe. Please follow the below guidelines in your interactions at work and while providing services to our clients and members.

#### All workers must:

- be aware of situations which may present risks to children and vulnerable adults
- assess, plan and organise their work to minimise these risks. These assessments are to happen routinely at the start of every public programme cycle.
- be visible to others at all times when working with children and vulnerable adults.
   There should never be a situation in which anyone employed by, representing or working with not/nowhere in any way is alone with a child or vulnerable adult.
   Employees should always be accompanied by an appropriate individual (e.g. a project worker, relative, carer or teacher) when interacting with children or vulnerable adults.



It is impossible to ensure that no vulnerable adult or child ever comes to any harm while in contact with not/nowhere. However, implementing this policy and following the guidelines will enable those who undertake work or come into contact with vulnerable adults or children for not/nowhere workers to be confident that they have taken all reasonable precautions to prevent harm occurring while being prepared to deal with an incident should it occur.

# Support

You should aim for a minimum of two colleagues to be together at all times when working with young adults at risk or vulnerable adults. If this isn't practical/possible please take other steps such as limiting the time spent <u>alone together</u>, or remaining in full sight of others or in highly frequented areas.

# **Physical contact**

In general physical contact should be kept to a minimum. In particular, you should not be initiating physical contact with a young adult at risk or a vulnerable adult. If they initiate contact with you, for example a hug, keep the contact as brief as possible and speak to the Lead Safeguarding Officer if you have any concerns.

#### Sexual contact

You must not engage in any sexual contact, or other forms of sexual behaviour including flirting, with a vulnerable adult or young adult at risk who is accessing our services.

#### Social media

You must not add any young adults at risk or vulnerable adults you have come into contact with through work to your personal social media account without consent.

#### 4.0 The procedure to follow

There is a definition of abuse and signs to watch out for in the appendices to this policy. If you believe that a young adult at risk or a vulnerable adult with whom we have a business relationship is being, or is at risk of being, abused, you must report this immediately to a Director or to the Lead Safeguarding Officer.

If you are concerned that someone is in immediate danger, please contact the police straight away.

# 4.1 What to do if a concern is raised to you



There are several ways in which you might be alerted to a safeguarding concern. You may overhear or witness something yourself. Someone might tell you of their own concerns, or you might overhear them telling someone else. Sometimes someone might tell you directly that they are being, have been, or fear that they may be abused.

If you are approached directly, you might feel panicked, angered or shocked. Please try to regulate these emotions as much as possible – appearing calm and level headed will help the other person to feel comfortable in continuing their disclosure.

Reassure the individual that they were right to bring their concerns to you and listen to what they have to say carefully. Don't rush them or put words in their mouth – you'll need to record what they told you later on.

Don't promise that you will keep their disclosure confidential; disclosures of potential safeguarding issues will need to be investigated so that the appropriate steps can be taken to remove the individual from harm or the risk of harm.

Explain what you will do (i.e. raise the issue with the Lead Safeguarding Officer) and then go back to the individual afterwards to confirm that you have done this.

If it is an emergency or you believe that someone is in immediate danger, you must contact 999 straightaway.

#### 4.2 How to Record a Disclosure

You must record all concerns as soon as possible. Complete an incident reporting form (appendix 3).

Make a record of what has been said, using the person's own words as far as possible. Then you should raise the matter immediately with the Lead Safeguarding Officer. Describe the circumstances as fully as possible. Take care to distinguish between facts, observations, allegations and opinions; it is important that the information is accurate.

Please be mindful of the need to keep this information confidential as far as possible. The information should only be shared with the Lead Safeguarding Officer at this stage.

### 4.3 How we will act if we are made aware of a safeguarding issue

If we are made aware of a safeguarding issue, or a potential safeguarding issue, the Lead Safeguarding Officer will make an immediate assessment regarding whether or not an individual is at immediate harm. They will act immediately to remove the individual from harm's way and will contact any relevant authorities as necessary.

The Lead Safeguarding Officer will investigate any allegations of abuse or malpractice made against any employee or third party providing services on our behalf. Depending on the circumstances, we may consider it to be appropriate to suspend on full pay while we carry out our investigations.

If, following the conclusion of our investigation, we conclude that there is a case to answer, we will invite the alleged perpetrator to a disciplinary meeting, the outcome of which may include dismissal. If at any point before, during or after our investigation we believe that a criminal offence has or may have been committed we will refer this to the police at the earliest opportunity.

#### 4.4 Review and improvement

At the conclusion of any safeguarding investigation, whether or not we conclude that a breach of this policy has occurred, the Lead Safeguarding Officer will lead a review, together with relevant workers and/or third parties. This review will consider the circumstances that led to the breach, or alleged breach, of this policy and will determine what, if any, steps need to be taken to avoid a repeat.

Following the review, the Lead Safeguarding Officer will report their findings and conclusions to the Board.

## 5. Online Safety

We recognise the increased use of technology as a result of the COVID-19 and the risks associated with online delivery.

- not/nowhere workers, members and freelancers delivering virtual activity will be briefed in online safety and a code of conduct.
- Each activity strand will have an accompanying risk assessment, which should take place in the workers meeting ahead of the activity.
- Each session must have at least one not/nowhere worker in attendance who is host for the meeting. An additional worker should assist the host for public events to monitor the chat and tend to access requirements.
- Hosts should blur their backgrounds and use headphones where possible.
- We will share information about how participants can raise concerns to the not/nowhere staff member. e.g. using private chat to the host, or by phone or email outside of the meeting
- Participants have the option of just using their first name



- The not/nowhere representative has the ability to mute participants or put them in a waiting room if they breach safeguarding guidelines
- Freelancers and not/nowhere workers should:
  - dress appropriately
  - o consider who else is in the space they are delivering sessions from
  - o what is in the background of the call if using video
  - consider that a child or young person may not have support immediately to hand at home if they feel distressed or anxious about content



### Appendix 1 – Glossary of terms

**Abuse** – abuse is any action that intentionally harms or injured another person. There are many types of abuse:

Physical abuse – any form of physical violence, including hitting, punching or kicking. This may also include misuse or withholding of medication, inappropriate holding or restraint, or rough handling.

Sexual abuse – any form of non-consensual sexual conduct including rape, indecent exposure, inappropriate touching or looking, sexual harassment, or otherwise exposing the individual to sexual advances, images or conduct to which they have not consented or were pressured into.

Financial abuse – taking a person's property or money without their permission, including theft, fraud, scamming, coercion in relation to an adult's financial affairs, or misuse of benefits.

Discriminatory abuse – hate crimes, derogatory comments, harassment or discrimination on the grounds of a person's characteristics, often in relation to their age, ability or disability, gender, race, religion, ethnic origin, sexual orientation, marital or gender status.

Emotional/psychological abuse – this can include name calling, threats and manipulation, 'gas lighting' or blaming the victim for the abuse, blackmail, humiliation and ridicule, intimidation or harassment.

Neglect and acts of omission – not providing the appropriate level of care and support for the individual, including ignoring their medical, physical or emotional needs, failing to access appropriate health, care or educational services or withholding the necessities of life including medication, adequate nutrition and heating.

Self-neglect – this can occur where an individual's choice of lifestyle means that they neglect to care for their own physical needs, or their surroundings, including personal hygiene, health, nutritional needs (under or over eating to the extent that their physical or mental health could be impaired), or living in grossly unsanitary conditions. In these cases there is no abuser.

Organisational/institutional abuse – this is neglect or poor practice in relation to an individual's care within an institution such as a care home or hospital.

Domestic abuse – The Government has defined this as any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive or threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over who are or have been intimate partners or family members.

Modern slavery – this includes slavery, human trafficking, forced labour and domestic servitude.

Regulated Activity – A person is defined as being in Regulated Activity' with adults at risk if:

- The individual is in contact with the person by providing healthcare. This only includes first aid when it is provided on behalf of an organisation dedicated to providing first aid, such as St. John's Ambulance Service.

- The individual is in contact with a person by providing personal care. This can include physical assistance with eating, drinking, going to the toilet, washing, bathing, dressing, oral care, or care of the skin, hair, or nails because of the adult's age, illness, or disability.
- The individual is in contact with the person in providing social work.
- The individual is in contact with the person in assisting with general household matters.

Examples including managing the person's cash, paying the person's bills, or shopping on their behalf.

- The individual is in contact with the person in assisting in the conduct of their affairs. This can be as a result of:
- a)Lasting power of attorney under the Mental Capacity Act 2005
- b)Enduring power of attorney within the meaning of the Mental Capacity Act 2005
- c)Being appointed as the adult's deputy under the Mental Capacity Act 2005
- d)Being an Independent Mental Health Advocate
- e)Being an Independent Mental Capacity Advocate
- The individual is in contact with the person in conveying. Any drivers and any assistants are in Regulated Activity if they transport an adult because of their age, illness or disability to or from places where they have received, or will be receiving, health care, relevant personal care, or relevant social work. However, "conveying" does not include licensed taxi drivers or licensed private hire drivers, and it does not include trips taken for purposes other than to receive health care, personal care, or social work. Pleasure trips, for example, are excluded.

**Safeguarding** – The NHS defines safeguarding as "protecting a citizen's health, wellbeing and human rights; enabling them to live free from harm, abuse and neglect".

**Vulnerable Adult** – The UK Department of Health defines a 'vulnerable adult' as a person who is 18 or over and "who is or may be in need of community care services by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness; and who is or may be unable to take care of him or herself, or unable to protect him or herself against significant harm or exploitation".

**Young Adults at Risk** – There is no legal definition of a young person in UK law. For the purposes of this policy a young adult is defined as someone who is aged between 18 and 25.

## Appendix 2 - Signs and indicators of abuse and neglect

There are many signs and indicators that may suggest someone is being abused or neglected, these include but are not limited to:

Unexplained bruises or injuries – or lack of medical attention when an injury is present.

Frequent injuries or unexplained falls.

Subdued or changed behaviour in the presence of a particular person.

Person has belongings or money going missing.

Someone significantly losing or gaining weight / an unkempt appearance.

Always wearing the same clothes.

Avoidance of eye contact, appearing frightened or hesitant to talk to strangers.

Poor concentration, withdrawal, sleep disturbance.

A change in the behaviour or confidence of a person.

Uncooperative and aggressive behaviour.

They may self-harm.

They may have a fear of a particular group or individual.

They may tell you / another person they are being abused – i.e. a disclosure.

You may witness abuse or harm, for example unnecessary restraint or use of force.



user)

# Appendix 3 – Incident reporting form

If someone has disclosed information to you then you should keep a record of their exact words. The sooner you can write down information about what you heard and saw, the better your memory of the event will be. Use this form to record the information and then send it to the Lead Safeguarding Officer.

Their details			
Name:			
Date of birth:	Gender:	Ethnic	city:
Contact with not/nowh	ere: (e.g. memb	er, ser	vice user, employee, project
If applicable, details of	person with cari	ng res <sub>l</sub>	ponsibility:
Your details:			
Name:			
Position:			
How do you know the pabove?	person detailed		
Date and time you four incident:	nd out about the		

Date and time you completed this form:	

Person collecting the report (usually Lead Safeguarding Officer)

Name and position:

Date and time disclosure received:

#### The Incident

Describe briefly the facts of the incident or concern that has been raised. Please record as many specifics as possible, including direct quotes from the individual(s) concerned. Think about the following (this list is not exhaustive):

Details of the incident, including any injuries or abuse

Date and time of the incident and/or the disclosure

Who was involved or present at the time (both of the incident and of the disclosure) Details of who raised the concern – was it the individual the concern relates to or another,

concerned individual?

What you were doing before/during the time that the concern was raised

What the individual was doing before/during the time that the concern was raised

Who said what, plus their exact words

Details of any immediate action taken

Any conclusions that were drawn from the incident or disclosure (try to be factual rather

than giving an opinion)

(Continue on additional sheets if necessary)

You are reminded that this should be a clear and factual account of your concerns and includes information on what happened and how you responded. Opinions are not necessary – you are simply recording facts about what you have seen or heard.

# **Lead Safeguarding Officer Report**

What action has been taken internally to support all parties involved – e.g. the individual and/or the colleague?

What actions have been taken internally?

Who is maintaining contact with the parties involved? And how frequently?

Does the Board need to be informed?

Have any external agencies been informed?

Yes / No Explain:

Yes / No Explain:

### **Ongoing Review/Updates**

The Lead Safeguarding Officer is to use this space to record any updates to the Incident Report – e.g. conversations with others, additional reports to reference, meeting dates/details/actions etc.

This policy will be reviewed during our next AGM in July 2024.